
Cast of  characters


Alison Gratzol, General Hospital, Elkhart, IN:
The (so called) mother (petitioner):

using, alienating & psychologically abusing (Parental Alienation Syndrome- PAS) minor children for her own ends and gains, as well as violating visitation and other Court Orders. She, moreover, and in violation of federal law, perpetrated extortion and kidnapping of children across state lines. Her stated aim has been to “get [the father] out of the children's lives”.


John Gratzol, North End Cycles, Elkhart, IN:
The mother's current husband:   

lying and using (PAS) on children against their father.    His stated aim has been to “get [the father] out of the children's lives”. He has perpetrated constitutional violations, kidnapping of minor children across state lines (a federal violation), conspiracy to defraud the court and the father, lying, etc.  


Michael D. Cook, Marshall Ciruit (72nd) Court, Plymouth, IN:
 Judge #3:   His unethical, prejudiced, illegal (against IN & US Codes & Constitutions) and negligent conduct (vis-a-vis the safety of minor children) rulings (or lack thereof) prolonged the case unnecessarily (as desired and instigated by the petitioner/mother and her unethical counsel), as well as the suffering of the minor children! He took no action (!) while being aware of the minor child's self-mutilation while in the mother's custody. Instead his rulings prolonged and exacerbated the situation. He would not recuse himself from the case until the father filed a lawsuit in the US federal District Court against him. This judge was also reported to the IN Commission for Judicial  Qualification (a secretive  branch of judiciary which seems to provide cover for judges and gives the pretense of dealing with complaints against judges. They even didn't act upon blatant violations of the US & IN laws and constitutions by Judge Cook! Little wonder that there are still too many unethical judges on the bench!). Judge Cook has violated the Constitution, lost immunity, committed treason against the United States.


Terry Shewmaker, Goshen, IN:
Judge # 1:
Unethically, and quite possibly illegally, ruled on the case for one year and failed to recuse himself, or even report conflict of interest (he was law partner of the opposing counsel!). Although everyone resided and worked in Elkhart, the opposing counsel (Max Walker, see above) filed the Petitioner/Mother's divorce in Goshen just so that the case would come in front of his friend and ex-law partner Terry Shewmaker! A week before the divorce hearing (nearly a year after the mother filed for divorce), the father, through third parties, found out about Shewmaker's conflict of interest and sought the latter's recusal. Shewmaker's rulings adversely affected the father’s children and his case! Shewmaker too was reported to the IN Commission for Judicial Qualification.

 David Denton, Elkhart, IN:

Judge # 2:
Terry Shewmaker's colleague and that of the opposing counsel(?). Denton was clearly unhappy about the father getting Shewmaker removed from the case. Denton did, quite obviously, not listen to the father's testimony and even refused to allow father's witness (in the witness stand ready to be sworn in)  to testify as his expert testimony would have destroyed the mother's case. This biased and unethical conduct became evident when his prejudiced decision was issued the following day (the hearing lasted for hours finishing late afternoon of the previous day of the Court decision being issued!). Such "efficiency" (unheard of in such a system and place) only points to the fact that Denton could not have considered the case by its merits and was determined to find the casein favor of the mother more than likely for 
a) Max Walker- a former deputy prosecutor of that county, albeit a disgraced one(!) conducting the Petitioner/Mother’s case,  
b) his displeasure with father for having exposed Judge(!) Shewmaker as unethical,
c) his obvious natural prejudice against fathers.
Ultimately, more importantly, Denton made biased decisions, while ignoring evidence presented by the Respondent/Father, thereby endangering and adversely affecting the minor children and their future!

Rex L. Reed, Warsaw, IN:
Judge # 4 (Current Court):
concerns remain with respect to whether this Court is willing to deal with this case in a fair, unbiased and timely manner to ensure the safety and well-being of the minor children in view of the nepotism and unethical and illegal way this case has been dealt with by the Courts hitherto involved. The initial indications are not encouraging. 

Judge Reed has been ignoring the father’s Motions and insists upon carrying out Judge Cook’s unethical and illegal decisions, hence leading to Judge Reed’s own violations of the children’s and father’s constitutional rights of due process and equal protection which result in him losing jurisdiction of the case and his orders being void (illegal, invalid, unenforceable) as well as loss of his judicial immunity. Rex Reed has violated the Constitution and federal and Indiana laws, committed fraud, tampered and/or conspired with Elkhart Superior Court Clerk to tamper official court records for personal benefit, endangered the safety of the minor children, issued multiple illegal and void ab initio (unenforceable) orders including those to false imprison the father in order to muzzle him.

Indiana Commission on Judicial Qualification:
Indianapolis, IN:  a secretive  branch of the IN Supreme Court, consisting mainly of members of the legal and judicial profession, covers up criminal wrong doings of bad and criminal judges (some of them, at the very least) and almost automatically dismisses complaints against them without proper investigation. They don't, apparently, even act upon blatant violations of the US & IN laws and Constitutions (let alone prejudiced and unethical conduct) by Judge Cook! Little wonder that there still seems to be  judges with questionable conduct on the bench!

Judges Michael Cook, Rex Reed and Shewmaker have been reported to this body.

Indiana Attorney General's Office (Steve Carter), Deputy A-G David Arthur, Indianapolis, IN:
represented by the Deputy Attorney General (DAG) David Arthur, has spent a large sum of Indiana tax payers money to defend a corrupt judge, Rex Reed, in federal courts including in state of Massachusetts. In the process DAG Arthur has conspired in Rex Reed's violations as, an official, he is obliged to report official corruption (18 U.S.C. 4) and take action, yet, the 

A-G's office (deputy A-G, David Arthur) while defending the corrupt judge Rex Reed for some of his crimes, lied to federal court. 

Max Walker, Elkhart IN:
The Opposing (Mother's) Attorney:  

a disgraced former Elkhart County deputy prosecutor who has violated Court Order, and whose IN law practice license was suspended for violence against a woman and her minor child (one wonders at the light manner he was dealt with for such a crime) and who, along with my children's Mother and her husband, drives this case to the extreme,  jeopardizing the safety and well-being of my daughters for his unprofessional reasons. The relationship between this individual and the Elkhart County Courts/judges, and the latter's conduct of the cases that he brings before them seem to be, at the very least, highly questionable and suspect (this case as an example).

He was reported to the IN Commission for Judicial Misconduct.   

Part of the corrupt relationship between him and Elkhart courts is due to the fact that his brother in law, Judge Biddlecomb, is a judge of Elkhart Superior Courts!!! 


Mable Blunk, Bristol St., Elkhart, IN:
The Paediatrician, Bristol St. Paediatrics Associates:   

who neglected and failed to carry out her primary duty, that of  safety and well-being of the her patient, one of the minor children in this case. Because, ostensibly, of her prejudice against the father, this so called paediatrician neglected to treat the minor child appropriately and in a timely manner when asked by the father only to impose the same  treatment on the child when asked by the mother about a year later, during which time interval the child had started self-mutilation!
Would you want the safety of your child(ren) to be in the hands of such a person ?


Lou Ann Todd, Elkhart, IN:
The Social Worker:  

who doubles as a child therapist although she has not the pre-requisite qualification nor disposition as a psychologist! She has been active as a biased conduit in perpetuating the mother's alienation of the minor children from their father! By her actions she has exacerbated the condition of the minor children. She has also refused to provide potentially self-incriminatory (against herself and the mother) records and documents including the child's medical records to the father (as he has a right to them), although the same records are available to the mother who, for some time, covered up the child's self-mutilation while in her custody!
The actions of this social worker may not be surprising in view of the fact that she was recommended to the mother by Mable Blunk (above)!  

One might be forgiven for thinking that there is a web of conspiracy, albeit possibly unspoken, between the mother (a nurse at the local Elkhart General Hospital) and various parties! 


Anthony Berardi, Family Learning Center, South Bend, IN:
Court-Appointed Psychologist: 

unethical and unprofessional who seemed more interested in money than the safety and well-being of the minor children. He too is held responsible  for the continued suffering of the children (the minor child continued self-mutilation after this man condoned and emphasized their continued residence in the mother's custody.
He actually complained about the father providing too much information (!) to him for the evaluation (such as the mother had a history of trying to commit suicide)! This obviously made it difficult for him to justify his biased and naive report mirroring the mother's lies which is the basis for the continued inaction of the Court, hence still leaving the children in the same unsafe environment with the mother! Since his report, the child has self-mutilated again! Furthermore, he has been biased and prejudiced against the father in his dealings.

Child Protection Services (CPS) of Elkhart  and St. Joseph Counties,  The Department of Children and Families,   IN: 
For over a year one of the minor children was self-mutilating while in the custody of the mother, with the latter covering it up for months until the father, living 400 miles away found out and exposed the situation. He informed the Court (Judge Cook) and Elkhart CPS on a number of occasions. Neither of them even bothered to investigate let alone take any meaningful action to remove the children to safety!
The reasons seem to, primarily, be 
a) the CPS suffers from the same institutional prejudice and discrimination against fathers  (and in favor of mothers) as most other institutions, such as Courts and Schools, ... . Indeed, if the complaint had been against the father, the Court, the CPS, the Sheriff, ... would have been  in there to remove the children like a lightening. As in this case, the complaint was against the mother, no one did anything! One could be forgiven for thinking that we were still in the middle ages, at least in the way institutions perform their duties in Northern Indiana, anyway!
b) apparently, the CPS does not consider psychological abuse (the mother and her husband inflicting Parental Alienation Syndrome upon the children against the father) warranting any action! Indeed, even when the mother's, and her husband’s, actions drive the child to self-mutilation and cover it up!
It seems that unless, and until the child commits suicide, no one is interested in taking any action to relieve them of their plights. And even then, they all band together to cover each other's behind! 
Legal and constitutional actions are anticipated in due course against these institutions and individuals.
After the last episode of self-mutilation by the child, and over a year after the father had first informed him of it, and as a way of covering himself, Judge Cook asked the Elkhart CPS to look into it. 
After a precursory investigation, in which they were satisfied by the cleanness of the mother's residence (!), rather than being concerned by the children's state of mind and psychological abuse (PAS) upon them, the Elkhart  CPS began producing their report.
As the father had expected, nepotism, prejudice and lack of integrity prevailing in the CPS (note Lou Ann Todd's -see above- she is a social worker, mother, a nurse, what roles here?), the Elkhart CPS "decided" to transfer the case to St. Joseph CPS, South Bend,  to complete (sanitize) the report as someone in the Elkhart CPS was associated with the mother and/or her side!  So the same neglectful and discriminatory “investigation” but with a sanitized cover (St. Joseph CPS) on the report.

Furthermore, both Elkhart and St. Joseph CPS further cover their tracks by refusing to disclose the full report and findings of their sham of an investigation to the father.

Needless to say, as far as these two CPS organizations are concerned, there has been no wrong-doing taking place by the mother- never mind that the minor child has self-mutilated multiple times in the custody of the mother while the mother tried to initially cover it up.

The two CPS groups have engaged in the character assassination of the father after he exposed their questionable conduct in this case.


